
 

 
 
 

 A g e n d a 
11:30 a.m., Wednesday, November 18, 2009 

Golden Valley City Hall – 7800 Golden Valley Road, Golden Valley 55427 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
  

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA - Items marked with an asterisk ( * ) will be acted on by 
one motion. There will be no discussion of these items unless a BCWMC commissioner so requests in which event the item 
will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda. 

 

3. CITIZEN INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

4. ADMINISTRATION 
A. Presentation of October 15 Meeting minutes * 
B. Presentation of Financial Statements *  
C. Presentation of Invoices for Payment Approval  

i. Kennedy & Graven – Legal Services through September 30, 2009 
ii. Barr Engineering – Engineering Services through October 30, 2009 

iii. Amy Herbert – October Administrative Services 
iv. Judy Arginteanu – Contract for three watershed education articles in 2009 
v. City of New Hope – Invoice for Northwood East Sediment Pond Reimbursement 

vi. SEH, Inc. – Review of St. Louis Park LWMP  
D. The Open Meeting Law and E-Mail 
  

5. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Presentation by Alye Bohn on her thesis “BASSETT CREEK: PERCEPTIONS OF AN URBAN 

STREAM: Discovering why Bassett Creek developed as it did and resident perceptions today”  
 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Administrative Services Committee Update on Request for Proposals for Administrator 
B. Resource Management Plan 
C. Comments on Medicine Lake TMDL Public Meeting (see attached Barr memo) 
D. Mississippi River E. coli TMDL Study– verbal update 
E. Grants Update– verbal update  
F. TAC Recommendations 
G. Education and Public Outreach Committee - Amending Contract with Writer 
 

7. COMMUNICATIONS 
A. Chair 
B. Commissioners              
C. Committees 
D. Counsel *               
E. Engineer               

   
 

8. INFORMATION ONLY 
A. Administrative Reviews  
B. Inspection Memo 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
    

 

Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission 



 

 

Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission 
Minutes of the Meeting of October 15, 2009                                         
 
1.  Call to Order 
 

The Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission (BCWMC) was called to order at 11:40 a.m., 
Thursday, October 15, 2009, at Golden Valley City Hall by Chair Welch. Ms. Herbert conducted roll call.  
 
Roll Call 
Crystal Commissioner Pauline Langsdorf, Secretary Counsel Charlie LeFevere 
Golden Valley Commissioner Linda Loomis, Treasurer Engineer Karen Chandler 
Medicine Lake Not represented Recorder Amy Herbert 
Minneapolis Commissioner Michael Welch, Chair  
Minnetonka Commissioner Kris Sundberg  
New Hope Commissioner Daniel Stauner  
Plymouth Commissioner Ginny Black  
Robbinsdale Commissioner Wayne Sicora  
St. Louis Park Commissioner Jim deLambert  
   
Also present: Laura Adler, BCWMC Technical Advisory Committee, City of St. Louis Park 
 Derek Asche, BCWMC Technical Advisory Committee, City of Plymouth 
 Jack Frost, Metropolitan Council 
 Dave Hanson, Alternate Commissioner, City of Golden Valley  
 Al Lundstrom, BCWMC Technical Advisory Committee, City of Golden Valley 
 Tom Mathisen, BCWMC Technical Advisory Committee, City of Crystal 
 Richard McCoy, BCWMC Technical Advisory Committee, City of Robbinsdale 
 Stu Stockhaus, Alternate Commissioner, City of Crystal 
 Liz Stout, BCWMC Technical Advisory Committee, City of Minnetonka 
 Liz Thornton, Alternate Commissioner, City of Plymouth 

  

2. Approval of Agenda and Consent Agenda 
 
Chair Welch added 6G – update on the Medicine Lake TMDL study. Ms. Herbert requested the addition 
to the Administrative agenda item 4C of invoice iv to the Lakeshore Weekly News in the amount of 
$180.40 for the publication of the September public hearing notice. Mr. LeFevere asked to be removed 
from the Consent Agenda. Ms. Loomis moved to approve the agenda as amended. Ms. Black seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously [City of Medicine Lake absent from the vote]. Ms. Black moved 
to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. Ms. Loomis seconded the motion [City of Medicine Lake 
absent from the vote]. 
 
3.  Citizen Input on Non-Agenda Items 
 
No Citizen input on non-agenda items. 
 
4.  Administration 
 

A. Presentation of the September 17, 2009, BCWMC meeting minutes. The September 17, 2009,  
minutes were approved as part of the Consent Agenda. 

 
B. Presentation of the Financial Statement. The October financial report was received and 

filed as part of the Consent Agenda.    

Laura Jester
Text Box
Item 4A



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
2 

 
The general and construction account balances reported in the October 2009 Financial Report are 
as follows:  

 
Checking Account Balance 540,539.75 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND BALANCE 540,539.75 
  
Construction Account Cash Balance 2,618,005.33 
Investment due 10/18/2010 533,957.50 
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT BALANCE 3,151,962.83 
-Less: Reserved for CIP projects 3,261,662.25 
Construction cash/ investments available for projects (109,699.42) 

       
C. Presentation of Invoices for Payment Approval. 

 
  Invoices: 
 

i. Kennedy & Graven – Legal Services through August 31, 2009 - invoice for the 
amount of $3,285.55. 
 

ii. Barr Engineering Company – September Engineering Services - invoice for the 
amount of $23,284.53. 

 
iii. Amy Herbert – August Recording Administrator Services - invoice for the 

amount of $2,001.79. 
 

iv. Lakeshore Weekly News – Public Hearing Notice Publication - invoice for the 
amount of $180.40. 
 

Ms. Loomis moved to approve the payment of the invoices. Ms. Black seconded the motion. By call 
of roll, the motion carried unanimously [City of Medicine Lake absent from the vote]. 

 
5. New Business 

 
A. Maintenance of Bassett Creek Watershed Channel Restoration Projects. Chair Welch 

stated that the Commission discussed last month that the cost of ensuring the establishment of live 
plant elements of CIP projects and specifically channel restoration projects is part of project 
implementation costs.  Jim Herbert of Barr Engineering put together a memo, included in the 
meeting packet, on the topic of project maintenance. Chair Welch explained that the memo 
outlined the various kinds of projects and their structures that require ongoing maintenance. He 
said the memo is for Commission discussion and that the Commission should provide direction to 
the Commission’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for its discussion and recommended 
changes to Commission policy.  

 
Chair Welch said the Commission’s overall policy is that the Commission pays for implementation 
of capital projects and the member city in which the project is located pays for ongoing 
maintenance.  
 
Ms. Chandler said that maintenance of the flood control projects is fairly clearly spelled out 
regarding the demarcation between where the cities are doing routine maintenance and where the 
Commission needs to step in. She said that maintenance of water quality and stream restoration 
projects aren’t specifically addressed in the Commission’s Watershed Management Plan or in the 
Commission’s Cooperative Agreements with the cities and said the Commission may want to look 



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
3 

into that further. She added that Barr didn’t make a detailed review of the Joint Powers 
Agreement for specific language about maintenance.    
 
Chair Welch said it would be interesting to get the TAC’s perspective on the idea of using the 
Commission’s capital funds for maintenance if the Commission could displace some of the capital 
costs with outside funding. He said he would like the Commission to discuss the TAC’s 
recommendation at the November or December BCWMC meeting. He said the Commission wants 
to be sure that the cities can build and maintain the projects before the Commission levies for the 
projects. He said that at the same time the Commission wants to reduce costs for the taxpayers if 
the Commission can get funding from outside the organization and there is a lot of funding 
available right now.  
 
Chair Welch commented that outside of the funding from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for 
the flood control project, the Commission hasn’t used a lot of outside funds so the present 
opportunities for outside funding will test the Commission’s policies. He said the Commission will 
want to decide how to deal with the possibility of receiving outside funds. Chair Welch stated that 
one option would be to lower the levy in the next year or another option would be to maintain the 
levy amount, since Hennepin County has expressed its support for maintaining the levy at a steady 
amount from year to year, and then use the capital funds to extend the capabilities of the 
Commission. Chair Welch said that unless there were any objections, he is directing Ms. Chandler 
to add that issue to the next TAC discussion.  
 
Mr. Stauner remarked that he would like to hear from the TAC on how it would envision the 
process of funding from the Commission work. He said his understanding is that the Commission 
levies for the construction of specific projects but if it were to levy for ongoing expenses it would 
need some sort of ongoing levy. Mr. Stauner said the Commission would need some sort of 
mechanism to project the ongoing expenses for the project and a mechanism would need to be in 
place for processing the requests for maintenance for projects. He said he isn’t sure on whether 
the Commission’s Plan would need to be amended to include discussion of the funding of 
maintenance. 
 
Ms. Loomis asked if state law dictates that levying for maintenance costs would need to be part of 
the Commission’s Plan. Mr. LeFevere said the authority under which the Commission levies is 
specific to capital projects in the CIP and the projects have to be in the Plan as well. Maintenance 
costs would have to come from the Commission’s levy to the member-cities. Chair Welch noted 
that the TAC would need to consider that important piece of information.  
 
Mr. Sicora stated that the Commission could consider extending the term of the contracts with the 
contractors regarding the maintenance of plantings so that the contractors are responsible for 
maintaining them for five years. Chair Welch said he would consider those costs as 
implementation costs. He said that maintenance has long been an issue when the Commission has 
considered permit applications and in its consideration of capital projects. Ms. Black commented 
that she would like the Commission to build some flexibility into the policy so it could consider 
funding a portion of maintenance costs in the case where they are unusually expensive (e.g., 
chemical treatment facilities). 
 
Chair Welch stated that the TAC should consider in its discussion that there needs to be a written 
commitment built into the Cooperative Agreements that the Commission has with its member 
cities and that the Commission may need to look into a Plan amendment to solidify the policy even 
if the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources doesn’t require it. He said he thinks a 
maintenance declaration, where the maintenance and schedule is recorded on the deed, is an 
effective tool. Chair Welch commented that Barr may need to amend its memo before it goes to 
the TAC for its discussion at the November TAC meeting. 
 



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
4 

Mr. Stauner remarked that he thinks the TAC should also look at how ongoing maintenance as 
part of a proposed capital project should affect the Commission’s evaluation of the project for 
inclusion in the CIP. He said ongoing maintenance costs for projects would need to be evaluated.  
 
Mr. LeFevere remarked that the cities may not be too happy about having their own citizens 
paying for maintenance for projects in their own cities and then also being levied by the 
Commission to pay for maintenance for projects in their own cities. Chair Welch said the 
Commission needs to be able to say what outcome it needs but the cities determine how to 
accomplish the goal. Chair Welch said he would be glad to review Barr’s revised memo before it 
goes out to the TAC. 

 
B. BCWMC’s Review of City of Crystal’s Local Surface Water Management Plan. Chair 

Welch said that Ms. Chandler of Barr has completed the review of the City of Crystal’s Local 
Water Management Plan and asked Ms. Chandler if she wanted to bring any particular items to 
the Commission’s attention. Ms. Chandler noted that Barr and the City of Crystal hadn’t yet had 
the opportunity to discuss Barr’s draft comments but she is interested in hearing any comments 
from the City. She stated that overall the plan was good. She said the plan doesn’t discuss all of the 
different kinds of projects that need to be reviewed by the Commission besides the water quality 
projects. Ms. Chandler also stated that the plan needs to clarify the Commission’s role in the city’s 
permitting process. She explained that in her memo detailing the review, the items in bold are the 
items that the Commission is either requiring or requesting the City to address. 

 
Ms. Chandler said there is a correction on page 7, items 20 and 21. She said the bold text for those 
two items needs to be deleted and that those two items meet the requirements. Ms. Chandler noted 
that the City of Crystal included its streambank inventory in the Plan’s appendix. She said the 
Plan also incorporates the City’s MS4 SWPPP.   Chair Welch added that the Metropolitan 
Council delivered its comments on the plan to the Commission already. Ms. Chandler stated that 
the Met Council reviewed the plan and stated that the plan is fine. Chair Welch moved for the 
Commission to forward Barr’s memo, with the corrections discussed by Ms. Chandler, to the City 
of Crystal for its response. Ms. Loomis seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously 
[City of Medicine Lake absent from the vote].  

 
C. Education and Public Outreach Committee 

a. Teacher Focus Group. Ms. Langsdorf said the Committee would like to hold a focus 
group of teachers of several grade levels to find out what type of watershed education 
resources they have, what type they need, what type of materials they would use, what 
barriers they encounter when they use the current watershed education resources, 
what types of barriers they see to applying to for BCWMC education grants, and how 
the Commission can better direct the grant program.  

 
Ms. Langsdorf said there are a number of members serving on the Committee that 
have extensive experience working with the schools and who have volunteered to put 
together the focus group and to chair it. She said the Committee would like to invite up 
to ten teachers and to provide each participant with a stipend of $100 for participating 
in the focus group with a maximum cost to the Commission of $1,000. She said there 
are funds available in the budget since the cost of the “10 Things” brochure was six 
cents per brochure rather than the twenty-five cents per brochure cost that was 
anticipated.  
 
Ms. Sundberg asked if the Committee thinks the stipend would be necessary for the 
Committee to get individuals to participate in the focus group. Ms. Langsdorf said she 
didn’t know if it were necessary but that she sees their participation as service to the 
Commission in a consultant capacity. Ms. Sundberg said she is more familiar with 



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
5 

focus groups in the business sector and said that although she sees the stipend amount 
as reasonable she just sees it as payment to them for helping us ultimately help them. 
Chair Welch remarked that there should be a diversity of teachers who participate in 
the focus group and the participants should be teachers who have experience and an 
interest in watershed issues. He also commented that the group facilitations need to be 
designed to get the broadest possible impact. Ms. Black said the Committee would be 
interested in any recommendations for possible participants. Mr. Stauner commented 
that he thinks the focus group is worth the investment. 
 
Ms. Sundberg moved to approve the funds up to $1,000 for the Education Committee 
to facilitate the focus group. Mr. Stauner seconded the motion. The motion carried 
unanimously [City of Medicine Lake absent from the vote].  

 
D. Ballpark Authority Easement Agreement. Mr. LeFevere said the legal counsel for the Ballpark 

Authority (BPA) sent a proposed storm sewer easement. Mr. LeFevere said the easement has a lot 
of problems with it and it contains proposed changes that would be disadvantageous to the City of 
Minneapolis and the BCWMC. He said Mr. Kremer is contacting the BPA to try to get the BPA to 
reimburse the BCWMC for its costs associated with dealing with the easement issue. Mr. LeFevere 
said he hasn’t yet heard from Mr. Kremer if the BPA has responded. Mr. LeFevere said it is 
important that the City of Minneapolis play a central role in handling the issue. Chair Welch said 
this is just an informational item for the Commission. 

 
6.  Old Business 

 
A. Circle Park Pond Improvements: Plymouth. Ms. Chandler reported that Circle Park Pond is 

tributary to Parkers Lake. She said the pond is a treatment project for treating water that would 
go into Parkers Lake. Ms. Chandler said the project was authorized by the Commission in 2005 
and a Cooperative Agreement was put into place with a project cost of $42,000. She explained that 
the Commission Engineer reviewed the plans and saw that a skimmer structure was necessary, 
which added $14,000 to the project cost.  

 
Ms. Chandler stated that an amendment to the agreement was drawn up and approved by the 
Commission in January 2006 but it was recently discovered that the amendment had not been 
executed. She said the Commission needs to sign the amendment. Chair Welch added that the 
Commission levied for the $42,000 but not for the additional $14,000 so those funds would need to 
come out of the closed project account. Mr. LeFevere added that when he reviewed the meeting 
minutes from January 2006 he read that Mr. Kremer explained that Commission funds were left 
over from other projects and could be used for the $14,000 project cost increase. Mr. LeFevere 
stated that it was the first time the Commission was using funds from the closed account fund, 
which was established in October 2005.  

 
B. Proposed BCWMC Projects for Clean Water Fund Grant. Chair Welch explained that the 

application process opened today for the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) 
Clean Water Fund grants. He said the Commission has identified the Plymouth Creek and the 
Bassett Creek Main Stem restoration projects as good candidates for funding. Ms. Chandler said 
that the Northwood Lake project (NL-2) would also be a good candidate. She said she has a few 
more comments after receiving information at a BWSR-run informational meeting she attended 
yesterday on the grant funds and the application process. Ms. Chandler said the application is 
online in the form of a spreadsheet and applications are due December 1. 

 
She said that the memo from Barr in the meeting packet had discussed the potential for applying 
for grant funds for the Wirth Lake outlet structure. However, Ms. Chandler noted that the Wirth 
Lake TMDL is not yet completed and the structure modification is not yet part of the TMDL 



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
6 

implementation plan, and the structure modification is not identified on the Commission’s CIP. In 
discussing the idea with BWSR staff at the meeting, she thinks that other projects applying for 
funding would get higher priority. For that reason, Ms. Chandler recommends holding off on 
applying for the grant funds for that project until it is in the TMDL implementation plan and/ or 
the Commission’s CIP.  
 
Ms. Chandler said the funding comes through the legislature each year, which means that next 
year there could be differences in the application process or in the guidelines for which types of 
projects qualify. She said that the legislature required that the funds be used for long-term 
projects, which means projects that show benefits for ten years or longer. Ms. Chandler said the 
message she heard was that biological control projects, such as carp management and aquatic 
plant management, don’t meet that long-term qualification because it can’t be shown that the 
benefits of those types of projects last for ten years. She said another message from the meeting 
was that even though the grant recipients have two years to spend the funds, the more ready the 
projects are to be implemented, the more likely they are to receive funds.  
 
Chair Welch said that given that information, since the Plymouth Creek and Bassett Creek Main 
Stem projects have been ordered, they are really ready to go and since the Northwood project 
hasn’t been ordered yet, maybe it is less of a candidate.  
 
Ms. Black asked if a funding match is required. Ms. Chandler said yes. Ms. Black commented that 
generally matches cannot come from other state or federal funds. Ms. Black asked if County 
money can be used for the match. Chair Welch said yes unless the County’s money was federal or 
state funds. Chair Welch recommended holding off on applying for grant money for the Wirth 
Lake outlet project until next year when it would hopefully be part of a TMDL implementation 
plan. He requested that Barr speak with Joel Settles to find out when Hennepin County will make 
its decision on how it’s going to use its funding. He also directed Barr to follow up with Golden 
Valley and Plymouth with regard to applications. Mr. Stauner asked about the status of a project 
in Plymouth regarding a wetland near Highway 169. Mr. Asche replied that it is in the City’s CIP 
and is briefly mentioned in the City’s Local Surface Water Management Plan. Chair Welch said it 
is also in the BCWMC’s CIP. Ms. Chandler said it is in the BCWMC’s CIP for construction in 
2011 – 2012. Chair Welch asked Barr to follow up with the City of Plymouth on its proposed 
timing for that project and to complete the grant application for the Plymouth Creek and the 
Bassett Creek Main Stem restoration projects.  
 
Ms. Langsdorf reported that Brad Wozney, BWSR, attended the last Joint Education and Public 
Outreach meeting. She said that the group asked him about funding from the grant program for 
education and public outreach. She said he responded that when included as part of a larger 
project application that funding is available for public outreach-type education.He said projects 
applying for funding would rank higher if there was a component of public outreach. Ms. 
Langsdorf stated that Mr. Wozney specifically stated that “a civic engagement piece is important 
in 2010 funding.” 
 
Ms. Chandler asked if the cities are going to be taking the lead in completing the grant application 
or if the Commission will be taking the lead. Chair Welch stated that she should discuss that with 
the cities but that he feels the Commission should take the lead if the cities wish and are 
comfortable with it. He said he thinks it would look better for a joint powers organization to apply 
than for a city alone. Chair Welch said he thinks it would be overkill for the cities to provide 
letters of support but Barr should ask BWSR if the Commission should get letters of support. Ms. 
Black said BWSR should be asked whether it makes any difference who applies as long as if it is 
the city applying then there is a letter of support from the Commission stating that the cities 
typically manage the projects for the Commission and therefore the cities are the ones applying 
for the grant and so on.  
 



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
7 

Chair Welch said that it makes sense to him that since the Commission is the funding entity then it 
should be the applicant. Ms. Black asked if the Commission would manage the funds. Mr. 
LeFevere said the cities could be sub-grantees. Ms. Black said that means the cities would manage 
the funds anyway. Chair Welch said he is inclined for the Commission to apply for Northwood 
also unless the Commission receives feedback from BWSR that the project wouldn’t be a 
competitive applicant. Ms. Chandler said there may be a problem if the city’s CIP shows the 
project as a 2012 or later project. Chair Welch said the city may be willing to push the project up 
if there is funding available. Ms. Black said the City still has the opportunity to change the timing 
in the City’s CIP.  
 
Ms. Chandler said that Mr. Wozney mentioned at yesterday’s meeting that projects that are still in 
the feasibility stage should wait.  
 
Chair Welch asked if Ms. Chandler needed more direction than has already been discussed. Ms. 
Chandler said no but if Barr gets into the process and finds it is different than expected, she would 
want the opportunity to discuss it with the Commission. Chair Welch said Ms. Chandler should 
contact him and then, if it is deemed necessary, a meeting of the Commission’s Executive 
Committee could be called. He pointed out that there is one more Commission meeting before the 
application deadline.  
 
Ms. Chandler said the Minnesota Conservation Corps (Conservation Corps) was at yesterday’s 
forum. She said the Commission could utilize them as the Commission would a contractor 
regarding maintenance and inspections of plantings and it would be fairly low cost. She said the 
Conservation Corps also gets an annual $500,000 grant directly from BWSR so if a Commission 
project qualifies for funding then the Commission may not need to pay all of the costs.  
 
Chair Welch said the Commission should keep that idea on its radar and asked Barr to mention 
the idea in the discussion with the TAC at its November meeting. He said Barr could let the TAC 
know that the Commission could facilitate contracts with the Conservation Corps and bring in 
those funds. 
 
Mr. LeFevere added that the Commission prioritized projects for inclusion in the CIP and more 
projects than the ones listed in the 10-year CIP have been identified in the Commission’s Plan as 
CIP projects. Mr. LeFevere suggested that in regard to available grant funds the Commission 
could consider moving forward some CIP projects not originally listed on the 10-year CIP. He said 
the Commission could either use grant funds for CIP projects as a way of reducing the cost of 
those projects to the Commission and member-cities or the Commission could spend the amount 
of money originally budgeted and complete more water quality projects. 
 
Chair Welch reminded the Commission that it added the major component of streambank 
restoration projects since the Commission developed its original CIP.  
 
Chair Welch asked when the Commission would receive feedback on whether or not it would 
receive grant funding. Ms. Chandler said BWSR will make its decisions on January 27th.  
 

C. Discuss Revisions to the BCWMC’s Joint Powers Agreement. Chair Welch noted that Mr. 
LeFevere’s memo regarding potential housekeeping-type revisions to the BCWMC’s Joint Powers 
Agreement (JPA) was included in the meeting packet. He said the issue in front of the Commission 
today is whether or not the Commission wants to pursue revising the JPA. Chair Welch added 
that no recommendations for changes were submitted by commissioners.  

 
Mr. LeFevere reported that from a legal point of view, everything the Commission wants to do can 
be done under the current JPA. He said the Commission began discussing a revision process for 



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
8 

the JPA because the Commission identified it as a priority during a brainstorming session on 
future Commission tasks. Ms. Black added that it was an idea included in the brainstorming 
session because Springsted, Inc. identified it as a potential task in the organizational analysis. Ms. 
Black said there is only one item listed in Mr. LeFevere’s memo that she sees would be helpful if it 
were revised at this time. She said that memo item number 7 that recommends changing the 45-
day mailed notice of public hearings to member cities to align it with the shorter notice 
requirement of state law. Mr. LeFevere commented there are provisions in the JPA that repeat 
provisions of state law, which opens up the risk of the JPA needing to be amended if the state law 
is changed. Ms. Loomis pointed out that it could cause some confusion for people who may not 
know that state law supersedes the JPA in the case that the state law documented in the JPA is 
outdated. The Commission decided it would take no action on the JPA.   

 
D. Collateralization of BCWMC Funds. Chair Welch reported that there is a state law requiring 

that Commission’s funds be secured. He explained that the Commission’s funds are secure since 
they are in a non-interest bearing account and the FDIC has a provision that such funds are 
insured to an unlimited amount. Chair Welch said the provision expires on June 30, 2010, so the 
Commission will need to revisit the issue.  

 
E. Wirth Lake TMDL Study. Ms. Chandler reported that the draft TMDL report is half complete 

and will be submitted to the MPCA in November. She said the draft will go to the MPCA before it 
goes to the Commission. Chair Welch asked if the Commission will receive it by the November 
meeting. Ms. Chandler said she wasn’t sure if it would be ready to send with the November 
meeting packet.  

 
F. Sweeney Lake TMDL Study. Ms. Chandler said Mr. Leaf asked Barr to report some 

information. She said Mr. Leaf expects to receive comments from the MPCA in mid-November 
regarding their review of the draft Sweeney Lake TMDL report. Ms. Chandler said Mr. Leaf 
explained that the Commission should review the comments, once available, for discussion at the 
BCWMC’s December 17th meeting. She stated that Mr. Leaf also hoped to have a more detailed 
draft implementation plan distributed to the Commission for its review in time for discussion at 
the December 17th BCWMC meeting. Ms. Chandler said the Commission should hear back from 
the EPA’s review of the TMDL sometime between February and April, 2010. Chair Welch asked 
Ms. Chandler to convey to Mr. Leaf that the Commission is eager to see the details of the draft 
implementation plan at least two weeks prior to the December Commission meeting. 

 
G. Medicine Lake TMDL Study. Chair Welch said he expects to get a draft TMDL report via e-

mail today for stakeholder review and for discussion at the October 22nd Stakeholder Committee 
meeting. He said the public stakeholder meeting will be held on Thursday, October 29th. Chair 
Welch commented that he thinks the Commission should submit comments on the draft TMDL 
and he asked Barr to prepare draft comments for the Commission’s review at the BCWMC’s 
November meeting.  

 
7.  Communications  
 

A. Chair: 
i. Chair Welch reported that he and Len Kremer of Barr are meeting with the City of 

Minneapolis at the end of the month. He said the City is undertaking an effort to streamline 
the city’s response to complaints about stormwater flow and problems and he and Mr. 
Kremer will be meeting with the City to provide information about the Commission’s 
agreement with the City about stormwater contributions to the tunnel and other activities. 

 
ii. Chair Welch announced that there is an open house today for the Mississippi Watershed 

Management Organization at its new facility.  



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
9 

 
iii. Chair Welch stated that Alternate Commissioner Ted Hoshal, Medicine Lake, had brought to 

the Commission’s attention the possibility of hearing a presentation from college graduate 
Alye Bohn on her thesis “BASSETT CREEK: PERCEPTIONS OF AN URBAN STREAM: Discovering 
why Bassett Creek developed as it did and resident perceptions today.” Chair Welch directed Ms. 
Herbert to work with Ms. Bohn and the City of Golden Valley to arrange a 10-minute 
presentation by Ms. Bohn at the November 18th BCWMC meeting. 

 
B. Commissioners:  

i. Mr. Stauner reported that the Northwood Lake town hall meeting had a good turnout of 
approximately 35 people. He said the group will be forming a lake association.  

 
ii. Mr. Stauner announced that as part of the Shingle Creek Watershed Management 

Commission he attended its watershed tour last week. He said the tour visited a site in 
Robbinsdale that is part of the paired intersection study where one part of the intersection is 
paved with pervious pavement and the other side is paved with regular pavement. He said that 
of interest to the BCWMC is that the second site of the study will be in Plymouth and in the 
Bassett Creek Watershed. Mr. Stauner suggested the BCWMC consider joining in on the 
study, which is being funded by grant money. Chair Welch asked that the Commission receive 
a presentation on the results of the study as they come forward. 

 
iii. Ms. Loomis reported that she attended last week’s Mississippi River E. coli TMDL stakeholder 

meeting. She stated that Barb Peichel, MPCA, commented that the Bassett Creek Main Stem 
may not qualify to be included in the Mississippi River E. coli TMDL due to the MPCA’s 
understanding that the BCWMC has already started its E. coli TMDL. Ms. Loomis said that 
someone with the BCWMC should call the MPCA to get the details straightened out. 

 
C. Committees:  
 

Education Committee 
 

i. Ms. Langsdorf announced that Mr. Kremer sent her a great cartoon about picking up dog 
waste and that she has gotten permission from the cartoonist to reprint it for use in the 
BCWMC’s exhibit.  

 
ii. Ms. Langsdorf announced that the Meadowbrook Fall Festival will be held on October 24th. 

She said that three members of the Committee will be representing the BCWMC at the 
festival. 

 
iii. Ms. Langsdorf reported that the Committee needs more information on who is currently doing 

outreach on the BCWMC’s projects before the Committee can make a recommendation on 
what other outreach needs to be done. She said she would like to know how the cities 
determine how large of an area receives the notice about the projects. Mr. Stauner said it 
could be something for the TAC to discuss and provide to the Commission. Chair Welch 
agreed that it would be helpful for the TAC to provide feedback to the Commission on 
whether the cities have specific policies that they follow and that they could forward to the 
Commission. 

 
iv.  Ms. Langsdorf reported that the Committee has a meeting scheduled for tomorrow, October 

16, at 9:00 a.m. in the Parker’s Lake Room at Plymouth City Hall to discuss the teacher focus 
group. 

 
v. Ms. Langsdorf said the next Joint Education and Public Outreach Committee meeting will be 

on November 10th at 8:30 a.m. in the Medicine Lake Room at Plymouth City Hall.  



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
10 

 
vi. Ms. Langsdorf said the Education and Public Outreach Committee will meet on November 

13th in the Parker’s Lake Room at Plymouth City Hall. 
 

vii. Ms. Langsdorf said that at the last Joint EPOC meeting, Brad Wozney, BWSR, was asking in 
what ways BWSR could assist. She reported that the Committee decided it would like to have 
a meeting to put together a framework for a larger public outreach effort and the Committee 
will be working on that at its November 10th meeting. 

 
viii.  Ms. Langsdorf said the Committee will be looking into the resource “Stormwater U.” 

 
ix. Ms. Langsdorf announced that the second article funded by the Commission was printed in 

the Sun Post for New Hope, Golden Valley, Crystal, and Robbinsdale on the front page and 
was also printed in the papers for St. Louis Park and Plymouth. She said the article was about 
adopting storm drains.  

 
Administrative Services Committee 
 

i. Chair Welch said the Committee met and is proceeding, together with Springsted, Inc., 
with drafting a request for proposals for administrative services. Ms. Black said the 
Commission will see the draft at the November meeting. 

  
D. Counsel:  

i. Mr. LeFevere said he has sent to Ms. Herbert the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust 
memo on the Electronic Communications for Ms. Herbert to forward to the Commission.  

 
ii. Mr. LeFevere said he spoke to Joel Settles, Hennepin County, regarding the Commission’s 

question on paying for the Main Stem project using funds levied for Plymouth Creek and 
paying for Plymouth Creek with funds from a later levy. Mr. Settles did not think that would 
be a problem. 

 
E. Engineer:  

i. Ms. Chandler reported that the draft 2010 impaired waters list includes the chloride listing for 
Bassett Creek. 

 
ii. Ms. Chandler said the comment period for the Commission’s Resource Management Plan has 

ended. She said the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers said that comments were received from the 
Department of Natural Resources and the Historical Society.  

 
iii. Ms. Chandler said she was contacted by Terrie Christian of AMLAC (Association of Medicine 

Lake Area Citizens) letting her know that members are looking at researching a redesign of 
the dam at the outlet of Medicine Lake. Ms. Chandler said Ms. Christian asked if Barr would 
provide some information. Ms. Chandler asked if the Commission approves of Barr providing 
a letter to AMLAC that talks about the old and new dams. Chair Welch directed Ms. 
Chandler to draft a letter for his review prior to it being sent to AMLAC. 

 
 
9.  Adjournment 
 

Ms. Loomis moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Black seconded the motion. The motion carried 
unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 1:55 p.m. 



 

 
#249428 v1 

BCWMC October 15, 2009 Meeting Minutes  
11 

 
_______________________________     _____ _________________________________________ 
Michael Welch, Chair                            Date Amy Herbert, Recorder                         Date 
 
 
_______________________________     _____ 
Pauline Langsdorf, Secretary                Date  



Laura Jester
Text Box
Item 4B.
Financial Report







Laura Jester
Text Box
4C.
Invoices































































Laura Jester
Text Box
Item 4D.
Open Mtg Law











Laura Jester
Text Box
Item 6B.



Laura Jester
Text Box
Item 6B





P:\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327051\WorkFiles\Commission Packets\2009\11-18-09\Word Documents\agenda_item 6C_Medicine Lake TMDL.doc 

 
 
 
 
Memorandum 
To:   Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission 

From:  Barr Engineering Company 

Subject: Item 6C – Comments on Medicine Lake TMDL Public Meeting 

Date:  November 11, 2009 

Project: 23/27 051 2009 030 
 

6C. Comments on Medicine Lake TMDL Public Meeting 
Recommended/requested Commission actions:  

1. Information only, no action needed. 

Staff attended the Medicine Lake TMDL public meeting held on October 29, 2009. Attendance at the 
meeting included MPCA staff, TMDL consultants, Steering Committee members (Commissioners and 
city staff), plus a number of citizens. Significant comments/questions brought up at the meeting included: 

• In response to a citizen question regarding when Medicine Lake water quality improvements 
could be expected, MPCA staff (John Erdmann) responded that it could take 20 – 30 years 
for the lake to reach its goal. 

• There were many questions, comments, and concerns regarding the post-TMDL monitoring 
proposed in the draft TMDL report, which calls for a number of activities, including lake 
water quality monitoring, BMP effectiveness monitoring (including monitoring of individual 
BMP effectiveness), detailed watershed load monitoring studies five years after TMDL 
approval, and BMP implementation monitoring by BCWMC. It is not clear who is 
responsible for all of these possible monitoring activities and exactly what would be required. 

• There was a question about the selection of 2006 as the year to define allowable total 
phosphorus loads, when it was not the year with the worst water quality conditions. MPCA 
staff responded that 2006 was selected because it was a typical precipitation year and internal 
loading was less evident that year (the TMDL assumes all of the internal loading is 
controlled—i.e., no phosphorus loading from internal sources). 

• MPCA staff noted that Plymouth Creek could be placed on the impaired waters list in the 
future, even though it is an intermittent stream (it is not on the draft 2010 list). 

Barr Engineering Company 
4700 West 77th Street • Minneapolis, MN 55435-4803 
Phone: 952-832-2600 • Fax: 952-832-2601 • www.barr.com An EEO Employer 
 
Minneapolis, MN • Hibbing, MN • Duluth, MN • Ann Arbor, MI • Jefferson City, MO • Bismarck, ND 

Laura Jester
Text Box
Item 6C



 
 
 
 
Memorandum 
To:   Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission 

From:  Barr Engineering Company 

Subject: Item 6E – Grants Update 

Date:  November 11, 2009 

Project: 23/27 051 2009 030 
 

6E. Grants Update 
Recommended/requested Commission actions:  

1. Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) Surface Water Assessment Grants – Information 
only, no action needed. 

2. Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Clean Water Fund Grants – Decide how 
much grant money to apply for in the Commission’s Clean Water Fund Grants application. 

3. Hennepin County Riparian Restoration and Stream Bank Stabilization Program Grants – Prepare 
a letter to the Hennepin County Board of Commissioners requesting continuation of the grant 
program. 

MPCA Surface Water Assessment Grants and Monitoring 

After discussions with MPCA staff, it was concluded that extended E. coli monitoring would not be 
eligible for the grant because the stream has already been assessed and listed as impaired for that 
parameter. The deadline for submitting an application for a Surface Water Assessment Grant (SWAG) 
was November 6th.  Prior to the deadline, BCWMC staff looked into whether extended E. coli monitoring 
on Bassett Creek could be eligible for SWAG funding. E. coli sampling of Bassett Creek began in July 
2008 and is slated to continue through June 2010. The Commission is paying for the sample collection, 
while the MPCA is paying for the laboratory analysis of the samples. In addition to collecting water 
samples, the Commission has been obtaining streamflow measurements, but only since September 2009. 
There has been some interest expressed in extending the E. coli monitoring through September 2010, to 
allow for more paired E. coli and streamflow measurements.  

The MPCA plans to monitor all major watersheds in Minnesota on a ten-year rotational basis, and will 
therefore be targeting six to eight major watersheds each year. The MPCA will be monitoring “target 
watersheds” during the period covered by the SWAG (2010 and 2011 field seasons). The Mississippi 
River watershed in the metro area is one of these target watersheds, and Bassett Creek is a target stream 
site for the monitoring.  

Barr Engineering Company 
4700 West 77th Street • Minneapolis, MN 55435-4803 
Phone: 952-832-2600 • Fax: 952-832-2601 • www.barr.com An EEO Employer 
 
Minneapolis, MN • Hibbing, MN • Duluth, MN • Ann Arbor, MI • Jefferson City, MO • Bismarck, ND 

Laura Jester
Text Box
6E



To:   Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission 
From:  Barr Engineering Company 
Subject:  Agenda Item 6E – Grants Update 
Date:  November 11, 2009 
Page:  2 
 
 

P:\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327051\WorkFiles\Commission Packets\2009\11-18-09\Word Documents\agenda_item 6E_Grants update.doc 

MPCA staff indicated that the MPCA plans to collect biological data (fish, invertebrates and vegetation) 
at two sites on Bassett Creek. One site is on the Main Stem, just downstream of Penn Avenue (not far 
from the WOMP station), and the other site is on Plymouth Creek, downstream of 26th Avenue. The 
MPCA will also be using the WOMP station to monitor water chemistry and field parameters. E. coli will 
also be monitored at the WOMP station. On Plymouth Creek, the MPCA will collect water chemistry 
grab samples (including E. coli) and field parameters. The BCWMC’s monitoring efforts on the creek 
were discussed with the MPCA, and they were encouraged to talk with Three Rivers Park District staff 
about their sampling program on Plymouth Creek. 

BWSR Clean Water Fund Grants 

At their October meeting, the Commission directed staff to apply for BWSR Clean Water Fund grants for 
three projects in the Commission’s CIP:  

Project Estimated Cost Proposed Year(s) of 
Implementation 

Channel Restoration Projects:   

Plymouth Creek, Medicine Lake to 26th Avenue $965,200 2010 

Main Stem, Crystal Boundary to Regent Avenue $636,100 2010-2011 

Stormwater BMP Project:   

Pond NL-2 (Northwood Lake) $943,000 2011-2012 
 

In subsequent discussions with city of Plymouth staff regarding the Pond NL-2 project schedule, we 
determined that it would be premature to apply for a grant for this project. It was recommended that the 
Commission apply for a grant for this project next year, after completion of a feasibility study and after 
the Commission orders project. The project will rank higher in next year’s grant cycle because the project 
will be further along in the process, and it is more likely that the project would be completed within the 
effective period of the grant (i.e., by December 31, 2012).  

The grant application are being prepared for the remaining two projects—the channel restoration projects 
on Plymouth Creek and the Main Stem of Bassett Creek. Although the local match required for the grant 
is only 25%, we believe the Commission’s application will be weighted more heavily if the Commission 
requests lesser amounts for each project. We recommend that the Commission request $200,000 in grant 
funding for each project. Applications are due December 1, 2009.  

Hennepin County Riparian Restoration and Stream Bank Stabilization Program Grants 

The City of Plymouth and the City of Golden Valley each requested $200,000 in grant funding from 
Hennepin County for the Plymouth Creek and Main Stem of Bassett Creek channel restoration projects.  

Hennepin County staff anticipates that the county Board will decide/approve the grant awards in late 
January or early February of 2010. County staff will be submitting their grant award recommendations to 
the county Board in December, as part of their Board Action Request. The county received 12 



To:   Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission 
From:  Barr Engineering Company 
Subject:  Agenda Item 6E – Grants Update 
Date:  November 11, 2009 
Page:  3 
 
 

P:\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327051\WorkFiles\Commission Packets\2009\11-18-09\Word Documents\agenda_item 6E_Grants update.doc 

applications requesting approximately 1.7 million dollars, slightly more than three times the amount 
available ($500,000). Total project costs for these 12 projects/applications were an estimated 8 million 
dollars. County staff will be contacting applicants for additional information and to arrange site visits, etc. 
Finalists will be asked to provide more detailed information consistent with the content of a feasibility 
report, including revised cost estimates and/or preliminary designs prior to staff recommending projects 
for award. The Commission has already forwarded the feasibility studies for these two projects to 
Hennepin County. 

For 2010, $500,000 of BWSR’s clean water fund grants for streambank, stream channel, and shoreline 
protection and restoration projects was specifically dedicated to Hennepin County. There is no dedicated 
funding for Hennepin County in 2011. The number of applications received by the county indicates the 
need for a continued grant program to address the water quality issues in the county. It is recommended 
that the Commission prepare a letter to the Hennepin County Board of Commissioners requesting 
continuation of the grant program. 



 

Memorandum    

 

To:  Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission 

From:  Technical Advisory Committee 

Subject:  November 5, 2009, Meeting 

Date:  November 9, 2009 

Project:  23/27-051 2009 

 

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) met on November 5, 2009. The following TAC members, 

city representatives, and staff attended the meeting: 

City TAC Members/Alternates Other City Representatives 

 Crystal  Tom Mathisen Pauline Langsdorf, 
Commissioner 

 Golden Valley  Jeannine Clancy Jeff Oliver 

 Medicine Lake  Vacant position  

 Minneapolis  Absent  

 Minnetonka  Absent Liz Stout 

 New Hope  Guy Johnson  

 Plymouth  Bob Moberg Derek Asche 

 Robbinsdale  Absent  

 St. Louis Park  Absent  

 BCWMC Staff  Len Kremer  

Also in attendance were Jack Frost (Metropolitan Council), and Joel Settles, Hennepin County 

Environmental Services. 

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) directed staff to forward the following recommendations 

to the Commission for its consideration. This memorandum presents TAC recommendations 

regarding 1) inclusion of Hennepin County’s in the group of participants in the TMDL categorical 

waste load allocations, 2) the review of the Medicine Lake TMDL, and 3) maintenance of watershed 

projects.  

Laura Jester
Text Box
6F.



To: Bassett Creek Watershed Management Committee 
From: Technical Advisory Committee 
Subject: November 5, 2009 Meeting 
Date: November 9, 2009 
Page: 2 

 
 

 

1. Hennepin County Participation in the Categorical Waste Load Allocation for 

TMDLs.  

Joel Settles, Hennepin County Department of Environmental Services indicated that he was surprised 

when he saw some of the draft TMDL reports with individual waste load allocations for Hennepin 

County. Mr. Settles indicated that the County would prefer to be part of the categorical waste load 

allocation and that they would participate with the group in the implementation of BMPs. He 

indicated that County road construction is subject to the City and Commission review processes and 

that the County would implement whatever BMPs that they can on their ROW, but that there are 

usually significant space limitations. TAC members indicated that the Commission asked the MPCA 

to give Hennepin County an individual waste load allocation because an agreement between the 

County and the Commission was not in place. However, it had also been agreed that if an acceptable 

agreement could be reached with Hennepin County, the County would likely be welcome to join the 

categorical waste load allocation group. It was agreed that if an acceptable agreement could be 

reached in the near future, all of the draft TMDLs could be changed during the review process to 

include Hennepin County in the categorical waste load allocation. Mr. Settles indicated that he would 

discuss the possible development of an agreement with other County staff; if they agree that an 

agreement is possible, he would inform the Commission of this development.   

Recommendation  

 The TAC recommends that the Commission develop the basis for an agreement with 

Hennepin County to include Hennepin County as a member of the categorical waste load 

allocation group; this would allow Hennepin County to participate in the implementation 

of water quality improvement measures required as part of the TMDL program.   

2. Comments on the Medicine Lake TMDL 

Staff informed the TAC that the MPCA had indicated that the recently issued draft Medicine Lake 

TMDL report was incomplete and that they will issue a complete “Review Draft” sometime during 

the week of November 9. TAC members raised several issues that will likely require comments 

depending on the presentation of those issues in the new “review draft”. The TAC indicated that they 

do want to comment on the Medicine Lake TMDL, but if a new version of the report is going to be 

issued, they should base their comments on the latest report. It was indicated that there were 

comments at both the stakeholders meeting and the public meeting that warranted changes in the first 

version of the TMDL report. The TAC indicated that because the discussion of this issue would 

likely take most of the January TAC meeting and the discussion regarding the maintenance of 

Commission projects would not be completed at this meeting, the Commission should decide if they 

want the TAC to hold a special meeting to discuss either the Medicine Lake TMDL or the 

maintenance issue.   



To: Bassett Creek Watershed Management Committee 
From: Technical Advisory Committee 
Subject: November 5, 2009 Meeting 
Date: November 9, 2009 
Page: 3 

 
 

 

Recommendation  

 The TAC recommends that the Commission review the need for a special TAC meeting 

to review the Medicine Lake TMDL report and/or the maintenance of Commission 

projects. 

3. Maintenance of Commission Projects  

The TAC noted that the maintenance issue was complex and that the discussion of the issue would 

likely need most of a full TAC meeting. After a discussion of ideas related to the issue, it was 

recommended that the Commission should decide if the discussion of this issue could wait until some 

future TAC meeting, or if the Commission wanted the TAC to hold a special meeting to discuss 

maintenance of Commission projects.  

Recommendation 

 The TAC recommends that the Commission discuss if the consideration of this issue can 

wait for a future TAC meeting or if the TAC should schedule a special meeting to 

consider this issue and prepare its recommendations. 

  



���������		�
�����
�	����������������	�
����������

��������

�
������	���������������� �	������
����		���

�����������
��	���	�� �	�� ��!������	������

"�	����# �$������%&�'(()�

�

�������	
���

�
����� � ��
�������
������� ��
��	�������
���
	������ ����
���
��� ������
���������������	��
����������
�

�
��� �����
���� 
����� �
�������� ������	���������� ����
����
���� ���
�������
���
������� �����
��� ������

�
���� �	
������
����
������� �������	����� !""��
�#""!�� ��
��
���	
����
����������
��$�	�����
�%	&����

' 	�����
�&	��������
�������������
�(��&��
�� �����
��
���� ��
�(���	
��
��
��������)	
%�����
��)	
�)������


�� ����������' 
������
���	&���
������������� ����&�	���
��	���������
�&��������
���
������
���
��� ���

�&�	�������
�����(����	���������� �����
����
���
�������������
���
���&��
�� �����
�� �������������� ������

����
��
�� ��������
��
������
��� 
�
�� ����������� ����&��� ������� ��������������&�	���
�����
������������
���

�
���
(��������� !""����� ��	�������
���
	�����
��
����� � ������������������(�������
��*�(�� &���#""!�

� ����
�����
��$�	�����
�%	&����' 	�����
���� � ����������� � �
��������(�������
����
(�������� ������(����

��������� ��
��
���	����������
��� ����
���
���
��� ������
������
��������������

��������	���*���	����	���
��	���	�+���'(()����,���������	��-.&'((�

�
��$�	�����
�%	&����' 	�����
���� � ���������	������
����
����
������� ��
��	�������
���
	�&���
��������

&�� +""�,���� � !""���� -.#""/�����#""!���� ��� �	�����������
�(���
��
������������ �����
���� ����������

�
��������������	���
��
��	������������
��	���������
���
�����	�����&���
��
�����(�
����������
��

�
(���
� �
������ ���������������	
��������	���������
�������� �����
������������ �	�������	����	���	&����

� ������������ �
����
���
���������������&��� ������	��������
����(��� 
����� ��
���
�
��������������

����������	����

�
��$�	�����
�%	&����' 	�����
���� � ����������� � �
��������(�������
������
���
��#""!���
������� ��
�

�	�������
���
	�&�� +""������� �0�� 	� ���� -.#""������
���	���������
�(�
��
���� ������
��� ������

�
��
��������������
������������ �������	���
����	��������������&���
��
��� �
�������(�
����������
��

�
(���
� �
������ ���������������	
��������	���������
�������� �����
���������
��� +""��
��
�����
������

� �	���&���
����������
��$�	�����
�%	&����' 	�����
�#""!�&	������

�

Laura Jester
Text Box
6G.



���������	
��
�������	������
	���
��������

����������������
����������
��������� 
������
�!��"#�$
!��%

��

�

� �� ����������	
���� ��
�����
���	����������	
�	���
���
������������		���������	�������	����	
���� �

��������!�����������

��"�����
����������"�����	������ � �	����
��
������ � �

����	��
������"�����	���	
��
��#��!�"����"��

�����
���������	
����
����	��$ ������$ ��
�	
� ����
�����
����
��	����������#������
��������$ �����"���
�
���


������	
����
�������%��������
���������
����������
������� ��� �&����	������� ����������������
�������

 ��� �'��������� �	
�����������(
�����
������������������	�
���&����	�������������)��
���
*�+����
�������

 ��� �� ����$ ���������� �	
�����������(�	�
���,����	��)��
���
*�-���	��
������� ��� ������"��$ �

���� �	
�����������(
���. ����
��)��
���
*#��. �������$ ��
�	
���
��	������� ��� �
$ ����
���������
��������

(�	�� ��� �/�� �
��	
��	���	�� ��� �. ��
���
����	*���	����� �������������
������� ��� �(/	$ �
�	�� ������

��������	�� �		�������*#��. �������
����"���
�����
�
$ ��� ����
������������� � �	�����	��$ ��� ���	����

� ��������	��	
��	�$ ��
�$ ������� ��� �
�����$ �0"����	
��
��#��. �������

�� �
�	
�
���	������

�������	
�
�"��� ��� ���	�� ����� �����������
���
�����$ �������
�������� ��� �����	
��� �
�������"���#���

������
��
��
��������	������	����1�	�����23

�
��	��$ ��$ ������	 ��� �
����$ �
��
���
��������$ ���$ ����"��

������ ��� �����-� �������$ �����������

���� ���	 ��� �
��	�
�������	
���
��	��%. � %���

������#����

� ����$ ������!����!��
�"���

�%. � %�$ ����������	
����
�
�����"�	
��	�4 �
�����53

�
������������	
�	���
���
����������	��� �����$ �	-�

��	
�#����	������� ���$ ��������
�����$ ����	
�� �	����
���	�����	
�
�� ��
���
�	
��	�������	
��	 ��� �
��	�

$ �
���"�	
����
�����	
�����	
�$ �
�����������
��	6���������
��������� � �

����������	
�
�"��#�������"�	
�

$ ���$ �����

�	����(��
�� �
��277� �� �����*��	�������������	
�
�"���
������$ �
��� �	�����
�����	
�#��

��"���������������������
��
�
���������������������"�����
��	
� ��� ��%. � %��	��
��	������� ����
#��!��� �

,�		���	�%��	
��$ �������$ ����	��	
����
�"���8����
�
����� ���
��$ �
����	�������
�	
��
��	
���$ 	���

�
��� �����	#���������� �	�
��
��	�������$ �����$ �����	�
������

�	
#��. ���������	������
��������� �
���927�

���	
��:���%�	�)�;�����������	��$ ��� ��$ �������������
�#��

' <� 4 �+�'�	���	
�<����
��	� ���� �	�������4   �������

/
�
���'�"�� ����27

�
�1��	
�<�4%�� ��
�	
��
�$ ��������
���
��
�'<� 4 �$ ����������$ �
�������

��
�	���
��	��
������� �����
	���#��%����	
���
���$ �
���������
�	���
��	��$ ����������
	��������

$ �
����������
���
���	��"��������
�	��������	
�$ �
��� �����������. � 4 #�����������	������
�� ������	
���

���
	�����
���
��������
���� ��
������
	����	�����
�����
��	��	�
���	�	
��	���"�	
��($ ������ �����"����

���
*�����8���
��#������������	�� �������� �	
������
	������)���� ����=2�� ���5727#��. ��$ ����������
����"��


�����	�
���)���� �����
�	��� �����	������
��	#�

�����	�������
���
��
�1��	�����

��� ��� �'<� 4 ��$ ����
�
���2262767>�1��	
�<�4 %�� ��
�	
��	���
�
��
�

� ��
�	
�������$ ������
���. �
��������	�������������
�� ��#�������	��$ ���"������ ��������$ �
��
�����

	�$ ������
��	���
������	����	������ �	��$ �����	�$ �����
����$ ����������� ���(�#�#�$ �
��%�
��%��	������

���		�	
�%�� � �����	���<	"���	� �	
���/�"������%�� � �����	���. � 4 0���	������������4 $ 	����

/������
��	�*#��' <� 4 �����	�
������������ �
���	�	
� �����
�
����
��
������
�
����������
��	���
����#��1��	�

Laura Jester
Text Box
6G



��
�� �
���
��
��
�
���������
�3?�� �	�
���
�������
���
�� ����
�$ �
�� ����$ �������������	��	��
�� ��

�	
�����
��	��
����������
�������
$ ��	��	�������	������� �
��
$ �������#�

)�� 
�<����
��	����	� ���1��	
�<�4 %���

�����%. � %������
��	6���������
��������� � �

������	
���� ��
�� ����"��$ �	
�
������ 
�<����
��	����	�

 ���
���1��	
�<�4 %#��. ����������
��
�$ ��	����
��������
������ 
����	��	
��
������� ���� �������
�
������

�	��
��	�������
����
�������
�
�����#�����	�$ ��	����
��������
����
��������	����$ �
��	��������
�
���#��

)���
��
����� ��	
�� �$ ����	�������
���1��	
�<�4 %������������������ ��
�	
��	�)���� ����@

�
�
��

��	
�	���$ �����	�
������ 
#��A
�$ ���������"������ �	
����� ����
�������B��
�$ ���������� ���
��#��/
�
����
�� ��


������ 
��������	
� ����5@�
��
�
������	�����	��$ �����	
� ����
$ ��� ����$ ��$ ����������
�����#���. ��$ ����

��	
�	���
����"��$ �
�����
�����	�8
��%. � %���6��
��������� � �

���� ��
�	
��	�)���� ����3

�
#�

/� �	�� �	
�
��1����/�
�	
��	�0��%�	
���
�

�����	��$ ���������
��
��
���'�"�� �����%. � %�� ��
�	
��	���
��$ ����������
��
�����������
�� #�

&��	���������	���
��� �)���	�'�$ �������/�
������

. ��$ ����������
����"��
�������
���������
����	�����$ ����
�#��/
�
���1��	
�<�4 %�� ��
�	
���. � 4 �

��� � �����	��� ��� �<�� �%����������� ����������� �
�����
������ ���
��������#�������	����	
��������
����� #�

. ����
��,��
�	
��

. �� ����
��
�
�������������������������	�
��
�	�����
��
�����������
�
���%�� � �����	���"��#���		�����"�����

���$ �
���8�� ������ ����
���	����� ��	����
��
����
�$ ����
��#��. ������� � �	��
��
�
�������������	�����	�


���1�	������
�	���-�
��������	����
�	����	�
����
����#������

' �8
�� ��
�	
��

�%. � %�<����
��	6�������4 �
������%�� � �

���+�!�������)��#�3

�
��
�>�77��#� #�+�(���� ��
��%�
��,����+�

����
��	��	��	 ��� ������
����$ ��
�	
*�

1��	
�<�4 %�+����������)���� ����@

�
��
�@�=7��#� #�+�(���� ��
��%�
��,����+�����
��	��	��	 ��� ������� �
����

$ ��
�	
*�

�

' �
�����������	����	
���� �

�



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: Terrie Christian, President, Association of Medicine Lake Area Citizens (AMLAC)
From: Barr Engineering Company 
Subject:  Medicine Lake Water Levels and Outlet Structure 
Date: October 22, 2009 
Project: 23/27 051 2009 030 
 
The Bassett Creek Watershed Management Commission (BCWMC) has been requested to comment 
on the recent low water levels at Medicine Lake and the design of the existing Medicine Lake dam.  

Medicine Lake Water Levels 
The BCWMC has monitored Medicine Lake water levels since 1972. During the last 37 years, Medicine 
Lake, as well as other metro lakes, has experienced periods of drought and periods of high water. The 
period of low water levels observed at Medicine Lake during summer 2009 was typical of several lakes in 
the metro area. The Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Hydrologic Conditions Report 
for September, 2009 reports that lake levels remained below normal for indicator lakes in the metro area. 
Indicator lakes with below normal water levels included Lake Minnetonka in Hennepin County, Upper 
Prior Lake in Scott County, and White Bear Lake, on the border of Ramsey and Washington Counties. 
White Bear Lake had its lowest September water level on record.  Significantly low water levels have also 
been noted at Parkers Lake in the city of Plymouth. According to the Hydrologic Conditions Report, 
precipitation for the metro area for the period of April 1, 2009 – September 28, 2009 was 6 to 9 inches 
below normal; the report is included as an attachment to this memo. 

The low water levels in 2009 are not unique; Medicine Lake has experienced similar periods of drought 
and low water levels in the past, as indicated in Figure 1. Water levels as low, or lower than, 2009 low 
water levels have been measured at Medicine Lake in 13 of the 37 years of which water levels have been 
recorded. These 13 dates are called out on Figure 1. 

 

Laura Jester
Text Box
Item 7E



Terrie Christian, President, Association of Medicine Lake Area Citizens (AMLAC) 
October 22, 2009 
Page 2 
 
Medicine Lake Outlet/Dam 
The Medicine Lake outlet/dam is located at the south end of the main basin of the lake, near South Shore 
Drive. The outlet/dam is 14 feet wide at the normal level; the structure discharges water from Medicine 
Lake directly to Bassett Creek. The outlet structure maintains the normal water elevation of Medicine 
Lake at approximately 887.7 feet (NGVD 29). (The normal water elevation is the elevation at which 
water will begin to flow out of the lake/over the control structure). The discharge (normal) elevation of 
the structure is approximately three feet above the level of the creek channel. The BCWMC, City of 
Plymouth, DNR and Hennepin County replaced the Medicine Lake outlet structure because the old dam 
had deteriorated and was leaking severely, and because additional capacity was needed for flood flows. 
The new/current structure was constructed to the same normal water elevation as the previous structure, 
as required by the DNR permit. The structure was designed to minimize seepage and other leakage from 
the structure. The “stepped” weir (outlet) of the current structure was designed and installed, in close 
coordination with the DNR, to address fisheries concerns and to minimize the duration of potential 
flooding during high flows. Changing the current outlet structure would not have any effect on the current 
drought conditions because the water level is already below the crest (normal level) of the dam. 
Modifying the outlet structure by reducing the width of the dam crest or installing a v-notch weir, would 
slow the release of water from the lake, and temporarily maintain higher water levels; however, it would 
also increase the flooding potential at several of the low homes around the lake. Any proposed 
modifications to the existing structure would require detailed analysis and approval from the DNR, 
BCWMC, the city of Plymouth, and the city of Medicine Lake to ensure changes do not increase flooding 
impacts.  
 

P:\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327051\WorkFiles\2009 Lake Monitoring\AMLAC Medicine Lake Memo.doc 



Figure 1: Medicine Lake Water Levels 1972‐2009
October 19, 2009

885.0

885.5

886.0

886.5

887.0

887.5

888.0

888.5

889.0

889.5

890.0

890.5

3/8/1971 8/28/1976 2/18/1982 8/11/1987 1/31/1993 7/24/1998 1/14/2004 7/6/2009

W
at
er
 E
le
va
ti
on

 (f
t)

Medicine Lake Water Level

Normal Water Level / Dam Overflow: 887.7' (1929 NGVD)

2/15/77

5/20/81

11/9/88

10/10/96

4/17/00

1/6/04

12/12/06 1/29/08

7/27/09

1/30/01

6/22/87

12/16/74

11/5/73

12/1/89



Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 

 Division of Waters 

  

Hydrologic Conditions Report 

 

September 2009 

Summary 

This is the third installment of the monthly Hydrologic Conditions Report.  For comparative purposes 
please reference the previous 2009 reports at: 
http://mndnr.gov/current_conditions/hydro_conditions.html   

The significant rains in August were followed by the one of the warmest and driest Septembers in 
the modern record.   Precipitation for the growing season (April through September) fell short of 
normal by five or more inches in many locales. 

 

 By late September, 30% of Minnesota's landscape was placed in "Moderate", "Severe", or 
"Extreme" drought categories by the U.S. Drought Monitor.  In many counties, the 2009 growing 
season ranked among the 10 driest ever.  

 Stream flows in September declined through much of the state.  Flows in the central part of the 
state, upper Mississippi River basin and the southeast fell to below normal or less with flows at 
some indicator gages below the 10th percentile when compared to historical flows for 
September.  

  Indicator lakes remained below normal in the metro, south central and eastern part of the 
state.  Water levels at White Bear and North Center lakes were the lowest historically recorded 
in the month of September.  Water levels were generally normal to high in the northwest and in 
the normal range in the northeast part of the state. 

 Ground water indicator wells continue to show declining conditions in the metro area.  Levels in 
the southwest rose to the normal range, while levels in indicator wells in the central and 
northeast part of the state remained in the normal to high range.  Ground water levels in wells 
in the northwest fell to the normal to low water ranges when compared to historical levels. 

 

The information in this report is provided by DNR through long term programs committed to recording 

and tracking the long term status of our water resources.  The current conditions of precipitation, stream 

flows, lake levels and ground water levels in this report provide valuable information for natural and 

economic resource management on a state, county and watershed level. 

If you have questions on the content of this report please contact Greg Spoden:  651‐296‐4214, 

greg.spoden@state.mn.us 



38

24

22

55

54

47 464652 5084 53 4449
48

43

42

3083

31 32
5182 4041

2981 39

27 28

38
33

1925

20
18

3717

34

16

26

15
34

23

36
14

21

5

35
10

13

11
57

58
12

56

8

2
4

60
59

9

7

3

61

66

1
63

73

62

72

67

77 76

68 65
74

78 75

79

71
70

69

80

LAKE OF THE WOODS

KITTSON
ROSEAU

KOOCHICHING

MARSHALL

ST. LOUIS

BELTRAMI

POLK

PENNINGTON

COOK

LAKE

CLEARWATER

RED LAKE ITASCA

NORMAN MAHNOMEN

CASSHUBBARD

CLAY
BECKER

AITKIN

WADENA CROW WING

CARLTON

OTTER TAIL
WILKIN

PINE

TODD MORRISON

MILLE
LACS

KANABECGRANT

DOUGLAS

TRAVERSE
BENTON

STEVENS

STEARNS

POPE ISANTI

CHISAGO

BIG STONE
SHERBURNE

SWIFT KANDIYOHI

WRIGHT ANOKA
MEEKER

LAC QUI PARLE

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

HENNEPIN

CHIPPEWA
RAMSEY

MCLEOD CARVER
YELLOW MEDICINE DAKOTA

RENVILLE

SCOTT
SIBLEY

REDWOOD GOODHUE

LINCOLN
LYON

LE SUEUR

RICEBROWN

NICOLLET

WABASHA

BLUE
EARTH

PIPESTONE MURRAY COTTONWOOD WINONAWASECA

STEELE DODGE

OLMSTEDWATONWAN

ROCK NOBLES

JACKSON

MARTIN HOUSTONFARIBAULT

FILLMORE

FREEBORN MOWER

Minnesota Counties and Major Watershed Index

1. Lake Superior - North
2. Lake Superior - South
3. St. Louis River
4. Cloquet River
5. Nemadji River
6. (none)
7. Mississippi River - Headwaters
8. Leech Lake River
9. Mississippi River - Grand Rapids

10. Mississippi River - Brainerd
11. Pine River
12. Crow Wing River
13. Redeye River
14. Long Prairie River
15. Mississippi River - Sartell
16. Sauk River
17. Mississippi River - St. Cloud
18. North Fork Crow River
19. South Fork Crow River
20. Mississippi River - Twin Cities
21. Rum River
22. Minnesota River - Headwaters
23. Pomme de Terre River
24. Lac Qui Parle River
25. Minnesota - Yellow Medicine Rivers
26. Chippewa River
27. Redwood River
28. Minnesota River - Mankato
29. Cottonwood River
30. Blue Earth River
31. Watonwan River
32. Le Sueur River
33. Lower Minnesota River
34. Upper St. Croix River
35. Kettle River
36. Snake River
37. Lower St. Croix River
38. Mississippi River - Lake Pepin
39. Cannon River
40. Mississippi River - Winona
41. Zumbro River
42. Mississippi River - La Crescent
43. Root River
44. Mississippi River - Reno
45. (none)
46. Upper Iowa River
47. Upper Wapsipinicon River
48. Cedar River
49. Shell Rock River
50. Winnebago River
51. Des Moines River - Headwaters
52. Lower Des Moines River
53. East Fork Des Moines River
54. Bois de Sioux River
55. Mustinka River
56. Otter Tail River
57. Upper Red River of the North
58. Buffalo River
59. Red River of the North - Marsh River
60. Wild Rice River
61. Red River of the North - Sandhill River
62. Upper/Lower Red Lake
63. Red Lake River
64. (none)
65. Thief River
66. Clearwater River
67. Red River of the North - Grand Marais Creek
68. Snake River
69. Red River of the North - Tamarac River
70. Two Rivers
71. Roseau River
72. Rainy River - Headwaters
73. Vermilion River
74. Rainy River - Rainy Lake
75. Rainy River - Black River
76. Little Fork River
77. Big Fork River
78. Rapid River
79. Rainy River - Baudette
80. Lake of the Woods
81. Upper Big Sioux River
82. Lower Big Sioux River
83. Rock River
84. Little Sioux River

Level 2 Hydrologic Unit (HUC4)
Cedar River
Des Moines River
Lower Mississippi River
Minnesota River
Mississippi - Upper Iowa Rivers
Mississippi River - Headwaters

Missouri - Big Sioux Rivers
Missouri - Little Sioux Rivers
Rainy River
Red River of the North
St. Croix River
Western Lake Superior

DNR
Waters

DNR Major Watershed -
Level 4 Hydrologic Unit (HUC8)



38
38

State Climatology Office - DNR Waters

U.S. Drought Monitor
September 29, 2009

percentile *
99
95
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
5
1
0

inches
3
2
1
0
-1
-2
-3
-4
-5
-6
-7
-8
-9

Climatology

September 1, 2009 - September 2009 was one of the warmest and driest Septembers in the modern record. 
- By late September, 30% of Minnesota's landscape was placed in "Moderate", "Severe", or
  "Extreme" drought categories by the U.S. Drought Monitor.
  In many counties, the 2009 growing season ranked among the 10 driest ever.
  Precipitation during the season fell short of normal by five or more inches in many locales.
- Large sections of the southern two-thirds of Minnesota received at least one inch of rain during
  the first few days of October. More early-October rainfall was expected as of this writing.
  Should the forecasts verify, significant improvements in the soil moisture situation are expected.
  Larger hydrologic systems will be slower to respond.

Notes:

DNR
Waters

* Percentile maps compare current-year seasonal rainfall totals with the long-term climate record. 
This percentile (ranking) statistic allows the season's rainfall totals to be described using historical context. 
A location ranked at zero means that the present-year seasonal rainfall total is the lowest found 
in the historical record; a ranking of 100 indicates the highest on record. 
A ranking at the 50th percentile (median) specifies that the present-year seasonal rainfall total is 
in the middle of the historical distribution.

DNR Major Watershed
Drought Intensity

D0 Drought - Abnormally Dry
D1 Drought - Moderate
D2 Drought - Severe
D3 Drought - Extreme
D4 Drought - Exceptional

Precipitation Ranking
April 1, 2009 - September 28, 2009

(preliminary)

Total Precipitation
Departure from Normal

April 1, 2009 - September 28, 2009
(preliminary)



#

#

#
#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

# #

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#
#

#
##

#

##

#

#

#

#

#

##

#

#

38

24

22

55

54

47 464652 5084 53 4449
48

43

42

3083

31 32
5182 4041

2981 39

27 28

38
33

1925

20
18

3717

34

16

26

15
34

23

36
14

21

5

35
10

13

11
57

58
12

56

8

2
4

60
59

9

7

3

61

66

1
63

73

62

72

67

77 76

68 65
74

78 75

79

71
70

69

80

LAKE OF THE WOODS

KITTSON
ROSEAU

KOOCHICHING

MARSHALL

ST. LOUIS

BELTRAMI

POLK

PENNINGTON

COOK

LAKE

CLEARWATER

RED LAKE ITASCA

NORMAN MAHNOMEN

CASSHUBBARD

CLAY
BECKER

AITKIN

WADENA CROW WING

CARLTON

OTTER TAIL
WILKIN

PINE

TODD MORRISON

MILLE
LACS

KANABECGRANT

DOUGLAS

TRAVERSE
BENTON

STEVENS

STEARNS

POPE ISANTI

CHISAGO

BIG STONE
SHERBURNE

SWIFT KANDIYOHI

WRIGHT

ANOKA

MEEKER
LAC QUI PARLE

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

HENNEPIN

CHIPPEWA
RAMSEY

MCLEOD CARVER
YELLOW MEDICINE DAKOTA

RENVILLE

SCOTT
SIBLEY

REDWOOD GOODHUE

LINCOLN
LYON

LE SUEUR

RICEBROWN

NICOLLET

WABASHA

BLUE
EARTH

PIPESTONE MURRAY COTTONWOOD WINONAWASECA

STEELE DODGE

OLMSTEDWATONWAN

ROCK NOBLES

JACKSON

MARTIN HOUSTONFARIBAULT

FILLMORE

FREEBORN MOWER

# Designated major watershed gage
September Percentile *

High Flows (>90th percentile)
Above Normal Flows (75 - 90th percentile)
Normal Flows (25 - 75th percentile)
Below Normal Flows (10 - 25th percentile)
Low Flows (<= 10th percentile)

Surface Water: Stream Flow

Previous Flow Conditions August 2009

This map is based on provisional stream gage data
from the USGS National Water Information System

September 2009
Stream Flow Conditions

DNR
Waters

* Percentile ranking based on mean daily flows for the current 
  month averaged and ranked with all historical mean daily flows
  for that month.
  A watershed ranked at zero means that the present month flow
  is the lowest in the period of record; a ranking of 100 indicates 
  the highest in the period of record.
  A ranking at the 50th percentile (median) specifies that the 
  present-month flow is in the middle of the historical distribution.
Data are current through 9/29/2009.



!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

LAKE OF THE WOODS

KITTSON
ROSEAU

KOOCHICHING

MARSHALL

ST. LOUIS

BELTRAMI

POLK

PENNINGTON

COOK

LAKE

CLEARWATER

RED LAKE ITASCA

NORMAN MAHNOMEN

CASSHUBBARD

CLAY
BECKER

AITKIN

WADENA CROW WING

CARLTON

OTTER TAIL
WILKIN

PINE

TODD MORRISON

MILLE
LACS

KANABECGRANT

DOUGLAS

TRAVERSE
BENTON

STEVENS

STEARNS

POPE ISANTI

CHISAGO

BIG STONE
SHERBURNE

SWIFT KANDIYOHI

WRIGHT

ANOKA

MEEKER
LAC QUI PARLE

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

HENNEPIN

CHIPPEWA
RAMSEY

MCLEOD CARVER
YELLOW MEDICINE DAKOTA

RENVILLE

SCOTT
SIBLEY

REDWOOD GOODHUE

LINCOLN
LYON

LE SUEUR

RICEBROWN

NICOLLET

WABASHA

BLUE
EARTH

PIPESTONE MURRAY COTTONWOOD WINONAWASECA

STEELE DODGE

OLMSTEDWATONWAN

ROCK NOBLES

JACKSON

MARTIN HOUSTONFARIBAULT

FILLMORE

FREEBORN MOWER

Upper Cormorant

Turtle River

Chub

North Center

Poplar

Edward

Marion

Chippewa

Minnetonka

Green

Lake of the Woods

West Jefferson

Mille Lacs

Upper Prior
Swan

White Bear

Shetek

Indian

East Battle

Tamarack

Pokegama

Sarah
Burntside

Vermilion

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(!(

Source data from: MN DNR Waters Lake Level Minnesota Monitoring Program

September 2009
Lake Level Status

Surface Water: Lake Levels

DNR
Waters

* Percentile ranking based on last reported reading for the current 
  month compared to all historical reported levels for that month.
  A lake ranked at zero means that the present reported level
  is the lowest in the period of record; a ranking of 100 indicates 
  the highest in the period of record.
  A ranking at the 50th percentile (median) specifies that the present-
  month reported lake level is in the middle of the historical distribution.

Data are current through 9/30/2009.

Previous Conditions August 2009

September Percentile *
!( Low Water Levels (<= 10th percentile)
!( Below Normal Water Levels (10 - 25th percentile)
!( Normal Water Levels (25 - 75th percentile)
!( Above Normal Water Levels (75 - 90th percentile)
!( High Water Levels (>90th percentile)

Level 2 Hydrologic Unit
DNR Major Watershed



Aquifer
Water Table
Buried Artesian
Bedrock

Ground Water Level Historical Rankings
September 2009

"

"

#

#

#

#
#

"

!

#

#

"

!

#

!#
"

!

#

"

!

!

!

"

"

!

#

Ground Water

DNR
Waters

* Percentile ranking based on last reported reading for the current 
  month compared to all historical reported levels for that month.
  A water level ranked at zero means that the present reported level
  is the lowest in the period of record; a ranking of 100 indicates 
  the highest in the period of record.
  A ranking at the 50th percentile (median) specifies that the present-
 month reported water level level is in the middle of the historical distribution.

Source data from: MN DNR Ground Water Level Monitoring Program

Water Level

Low Water Levels (< 10% percentile)

!(

Below Normal Water Levels (10% - 25% percentile)

Above Normal Water Levels (75% - 90% percentile)
Normal Water Levels (25% - 75% percentile)

High Water Levels (> 90% percentile)!(

!(

!(

!(

August 2009 Indicator Wells

"

"

#
"

#
#

##

"

!

#
!

# !

!!

#
"

#

!

"

"

"

!!
#


	4A October Minutes
	4B Financial Report
	4C Invoices
	4D Open Meeting Law and Email
	6B Comments on Resource Management Plan - MN Historical Society
	6B Comments on Resource Managment Plan - DNR
	6C Comments on Medicine Lake TMDL Public Meeting
	6E Grants Update
	6F TAC Recommendations
	6G Education Cmte Contract Amendment with Writer
	6G Education Cmte Meeting Minutes
	7E-Eng Commun-AMLAC Medicine Lake Memo.pdf
	hydrologic_conditions_september_2009.pdf
	hydrologic_conditions_september_2009.pdf
	Report Summary
	base
	climatology
	streams
	lakes
	Indicator Wells






